
 
 
Members of the public are welcome to attend committee meetings. However, occasionally, committees 
may have to consider some business in private. Copies of agendas, minutes and reports are available 
on request in Braille, in large print, on audio tape, on computer disk or in other languages. 

 

Healthier Communities Select Committee 
Agenda 

 
Tuesday, 25 June 2019 
7.30 pm,  
Civic Suite 
Lewisham Town Hall 
London SE6 4RU 
 
For more information contact:  John Bardens (02083149976) 
 

Part 1 
 
Item  Pages 

 
1.   Minutes of the meeting held on 14 May 2019 

 
3 - 8 

2.   Declarations of interest 
 

9 - 12 

3.   Responses from Mayor and Cabinet 
 

13 - 16 

4.   Mental Health Alliance 
 

17 - 28 

5.   Lewisham and Greenwich NHS Trust CQC inspection 
To follow 

 

6.   Primary care CQC inspections update 
To follow 

 

7.   Early help review 
 

29 - 36 

8.   Select Committee work programme 
 

37 - 56 

9.   Referrals to Mayor and Cabinet 
 

 

Public Document Pack



 

Healthier Communities Select Committee 
Members 

 
 
Members of the committee, listed below, are summoned to attend the meeting to be held 
on Tuesday, 25 June 2019.   
 
Janet Senior, Acting Chief Executive 
Monday, 17 June 2019 
 
  

Councillor John Muldoon (Chair)  

Councillor Coral Howard (Vice-Chair)  

Councillor Tauseef Anwar  

Councillor Peter Bernards  

Councillor Aisling Gallagher  

Councillor Colin Elliott  

Councillor Octavia Holland  

Councillor Olurotimi Ogunbadewa  

Councillor Jacq Paschoud  

Councillor Bill Brown (ex-Officio)  

Councillor Sakina Sheikh (ex-Officio)  

  

   



1 
 

MINUTES OF THE HEALTHIER COMMUNITIES 

SELECT COMMITTEE 

Tuesday 14 May 2019, 7.30pm 

Present: Councillors John Muldoon (Chair), Coral Howard (Vice Chair), Tauseef Anwar, Peter 

Bernards, Aisling Gallagher, Colin Elliot, Jacq Paschoud, Octavia Holland, Luke Sorba, 

Caroline Kalu, Hilary Moore, Liz Johnston-Franklin, John Paschoud, and James Rathbone.  

Apologies: Cllr Ogunbadewa. 

Also Present: Kenneth Gregory (Joint Commissioning Lead, Adult Mental Health), Dee Carlin 

(Head of Joint Commissioning), Laura Harper (Joint Commissioner), Heather Hughes (Joint 

Commissioning Lead, Complex Care & Learning Disability), Dr Ranga Rao (Clinical Director, 

SLaM), Beverly Murphy (Director of Nursing, SLaM), James Lee (Director of Culture and 

Community Development), David Walton (Community Assets Manager), Nigel Bowness 

(Healthwatch), Georgina Nunney (Principal Lawyer) and John Bardens (Scrutiny Manager). 

1. Minutes of the meeting held on 4 April 2019 

1.1 The committee noted that at its previous meeting it discussed receiving an update on 

the discussions between Lewisham and Greenwich NHS Trust and the Save 

Lewisham Hospital Campaign on health visitor ratios and the role of health visitor 

assistants. 

1.2 The committee agreed to reflect this in the minutes and work programme. 

Resolved: the minutes of the last meeting were agreed as a true record with the above 

changes. 

2. Declarations of interest 

Cllrs John Paschoud and Jacq Paschoud declared non-pecuniary interests in item 6 (older 

adults’ day services and day activities) as voluntary drivers for Voluntary Services Lewisham. 

3. Responses from Mayor and Cabinet 

3.1 The committee received the Mayor and Cabinet response to its referral on advice and 

support services previously provided by the Lewisham Disability Coalition. 

3.2 The committee asked if grant funding for any replacement service would be the same. 

3.3 Officers informed the committee that because the council agreed an overall 19% cut 

to the grants budget, grant funding for the replacement advice and support service will 

be less than it was previously. The council will work closely with all organisations 

affected, but the impact will be a reduction of service.  

3.4 The committee noted that when the council gives grants to user-led organisations, like 

the Lewisham Disability Coalition, the trustees need to be given adequate support to 

fulfil their duties. This is particularly the case with groups like the Lewisham Disability 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



2 
 

Coalition, where the majority of users were vulnerable people with learning disabilities 

or mental health problems. 

Resolved: the committee noted the response. 

4. BAME mental health inequalities 

Kenneth Gregory (Joint Commissioning Lead, Adult Mental Health) introduced the report. 

The following key points were noted: 

4.1 In July 2018, the Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB) decided that BAME health 

inequalities in Lewisham would be its priority area of focus and that mental health 

would be its first specific area of work.  

4.2 A BAME mental health summit was held in October, which was attended by members 

of the BAME community, voluntary and community sector organisations and officers.  

4.3 The event identified a number of key themes which it was felt needed to be addressed 

to make mental health services more attractive and relevant for BAME communities.  

4.4 An externally facilitated workshop was subsequently held with HWB members and 

representatives from the Lewisham BME Network to discuss how to work together to 

improve services. 

4.5 Officers then met with the BME Network Health lead to establish an approach to co-

production and it was agreed that the BME Network would work with the Mental Health 

Provider Alliance. 

4.6 The next step is to develop a programme plan on health inequalities and some of the 

other changes that can be made to improve access to services, people’s experiences 

and outcomes.  

4.7 The Children and Young People’s Strategic Partnership Board (CYPSPB) will be 

considering BME access to mental health services at their June meeting.  

4.8 Some of the recommendations of a councillor-produced report on mental health 

inequalities in relation to children will be considered by the CYPSPB as part of their 

work on BAME health inequalities. 

4.9 The committee noted that addressing BAME mental health inequalities is a corporate 

priority and commented that the scope of the council’s work in this area was still 

unclear. The committee requested more detail on the plans and specific actions in 

relation to this work. 

4.10 It was noted that the council’s work on BAME health inequalities is a large-scale and 

ongoing piece of work. The council has done a lot of work to build trust and establish 

channels of communication with people and groups in the community and work has 

already started on how services can be improved based on feedback received so far. 

 

Page 4



3 
 

Resolved:  

1. The committee agreed to refer its views to Mayor and Cabinet and the Health and 

Wellbeing Board in the following terms: 

That the progress of the work on BAME Mental Health inequalities is set out, with clear 

timelines, responsibilities and proposed actions, in line with our commitments in the new 

corporate strategy, for both adults and children and young people. 

2. To hold a one-off joint meeting with the Children and Young People Select Committee 

before the summer recess to further consider the work being undertaken by the council to 

address BAME mental health inequalities; to receive evidence at this meeting on the 

progress of this work with clear timescales and proposed actions, on who is responsible 

for overseeing and monitoring the progress of this work at senior officer and cabinet level, 

and on whether there are any barriers to making quick progress; and to receive evidence 

at this meeting from the Cabinet Member for Health and Adult Social Care, the Cabinet 

Member for Children’s Services, and the Chair of the Health Wellbeing Board. 

5. SLaM quality accounts 

Beverly Murphy (Director of Nursing, SLaM) introduced the report. The following key points 

were noted: 

5.1 The quality accounts monitor the progress on the trust’s quality priorities in the previous 

year. They also set new priorities for the coming year. The quality priorities for next 

year are unchanged. Quality priorities are set with the involvement of service users, 

carers, governors, and staff.  

5.2 It was noted that acute wards for working age adults and psychiatric intensive care 

units had been rated by the CQC as “inadequate”. The CQC has since carried out a 

further inspection, finding that significant changes had been made, and does not intend 

to take any further action. The trust anticipates that the rating will improve to at least 

“requires improvement”. 

5.3 The Improving Access to Psychological Therapies (IAPT) service has achieved its 

targets, but there needs to be closer working with primary care to make sure people 

get to the right pathway without delay. The service is receiving real-terms investment 

from Lewisham NHS commissioners.  

5.4 SLaM is transforming the way its community services work in order to work more 

actively in the community with different third-sector providers and make the best use 

of the resources there are. It is hoped that this will help to reduce the number of 

readmissions and help SLaM manage its bed stock more effectively.   

Resolved: The committee thanked South London and Maudsley NHS Foundation 

Trust for presenting the report and engaging with the committee.  

 

 

Page 5



4 
 

6. Older adults day activities and day services 

Heather Hughes (Joint Commissioning Lead, Complex Care & Learning Disability) 

introduced the report. The following key points were noted: 

6.1 Demand for building-based day service for adults has reduced from 56 places per 

day in 2012/13 to 34 places per day in 2018/19.  

6.2 Mainstream adult day services are currently delivered at the Calabash Centre, Cedar 

Court, and Cinnamon Court. 

6.3 Officers are seeking permission to consult on proposals to combine the three 

services into a single service providing 30 places per day. 

6.4 The council has heavily invested in alternative offers for day activities for older adults. 

With the increased use of direct payments, more people who may have historically 

gone to day services are using the wider community offer.  

6.5 Increasingly, the council is supporting people who have significant care needs to 

remain at home in the community and this is reflecting in the increase in referrals for 

people with high needs to day services. 

6.6 The committee noted the planned consultation timetable and commented that 

consulting over July and August would not get the maximum response.  

6.7 In response, officers would explore extending the consultation period. 

6.8 The committee asked if the council has a sense of why the BME-specific day service 

at the Calabash centre is being underused and whether service users had been 

asked about this.  

6.9 The day service at the Calabash centre is tailored specifically for older people from 

Afro-Caribbean backgrounds and the number of older people in Lewisham from that 

community being referred to the service at the Calabash centre is decreasing. This 

may be because people from this community are accessing other formal and informal 

services.  

6.10 The committee also asked if the proposed consultation would engage people who 

meet the criteria for day services but who are not currently service users. 

6.11 The proposed consultation is an open consultation. The council will be making direct 

contact with people who use the services and their families and will also be 

contacting key stakeholder groups. 

6.12 The committee noted that, while the culturally-specific needs of older people will 

change over time, it may be too soon to discontinue the BME-specific service at the 

Calabash centre as this is still an extremely important service for a lot of people.  

6.13 The committee also noted that if the existing day services are to be consolidated at 

one location, the Calabash centre, then the council will need to consider the 

practicalities of greater numbers of accessible vehicles being parked on the road 

outside the centre at the same time. 

Page 6



5 
 

6.14 Officers said that the number of places per day commissioned reflected the numbers 

that were commissioned under the previous historical contract for Calabash where 

parking had been manageable. 

Resolved: The committee agreed to refer its views to Mayor and Cabinet in the following 

terms: 

The committee recommends to Mayor & Cabinet that the proposed consultation 

period for these proposals is varied in order to avoid the school summer holidays – a 

time when the consultation is unlikely to receive the maximum number of responses. 

7. Select Committee work programme 

John Bardens (Scrutiny Manager) introduced the work programme. 

The committee made the following comments and suggestions: 

6.1 The committee requested an update on the aspects of the council’s Early Help Review 

which are relevant to the remit of the committee, particularly health visiting.   

6.2  The committee asked if it would be possible to explore the possibility of receiving the 

item on Lewisham Hospital system resilience earlier than December.  

Resolved: the Committee noted the work programme. 

8. Referrals to Mayor and Cabinet 

Resolved: The committee agreed to refer its views to Mayor and Cabinet in relation to items 

4 and 6 as set out in the minutes above. 

9. Exclusion of the press and public 

The chair announced the reasons for the exclusion of press and public for the following item. 

10. Leisure centre performance 

James Lee (Director of Culture and Community Development) introduced the report. The 

following key points were noted: 

10.1 In response to changes in the leisure market, with a significant increase in the number 

of budget gyms, Fusion tightened expenditure control, which led to persistent 

performance and cleanliness issues, an increase in complaints and membership 

numbers reducing. Many leisure providers are experiencing similar issues to Fusion. 

Health and safety and fire safety issues have not been compromised.  

At 10pm the committee agreed to suspend standing orders to complete the remaining agenda. 

10.2 The council is in the second year of in-depth contract management talks with Fusion 

in order to try to improve performance. There has been a positive change in Fusion’s 

response in recent months. The council’s procurement team has also been involved in 

the latest round of contract monitoring. 

Page 7



6 
 

10.3 Officers are in discussion with executive members of the council about the best way to 

move forward and whether there needs to be a change to the contract with Fusion or 

if the council should continue to deal with complaints and try to drive up performance.  

10.5 The committee asked if the council was satisfied with business intelligence at Fusion. 

10.6 Fusion collect a large amount of business intelligence data but does not have the 

resources to be able to analyse and use the data productively.  

Resolved: the committee noted the report. 

The meeting ended at 22.20pm 

Chair:  

 ---------------------------------------------------- 

Date: 

 ---------------------------------------------------- 

Page 8



Healthier Communities Select Committee 

Title Declaration of interests 

Contributor Chief Executive Item 2 

Class Part 1 (open) 25 June 2019 

 
Declaration of interests 
 
Members are asked to declare any personal interest they have in any item on the 
agenda. 
 
1. Personal interests 
 

There are three types of personal interest referred to in the Council’s Member 
Code of Conduct: 
 
(1) Disclosable pecuniary interests 
(2) Other registerable interests 
(3) Non-registerable interests 

 
2. Disclosable pecuniary interests are defined by regulation as:- 
 

(a) Employment, trade, profession or vocation of a relevant person* for profit or 
gain 

 
(b) Sponsorship –payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than 

by the Council) within the 12 months prior to giving notice for inclusion in the 
register in respect of expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a 
member or towards your election expenses (including payment or financial 
benefit  from a Trade Union). 

 
(c) Undischarged contracts between a relevant person* (or a firm in which they 

are a partner or a body corporate in which they are a director, or in the 
securities of which they have a beneficial interest) and the Council for goods, 
services or works. 

 
(d) Beneficial interests in land in the borough. 
 
(e) Licence to occupy land in the borough for one month or more. 
 
(f) Corporate tenancies – any tenancy, where to the member’s knowledge, the 

Council is landlord and the tenant is a firm in which the relevant person* is a 
partner, a body corporate in which they are a director, or in the securities of 
which they have a beneficial interest.   

 
(g)  Beneficial interest in securities of a body where: 
 

(a) that body to the member’s knowledge has a place of business or land 
in the borough;  

Page 9

Agenda Item 2



(b) and either 
 

(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or 1/100 of 
the total issued share capital of that body; or 
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the relevant 
person* has a beneficial interest exceeds 1/100 of the total issued 
share capital of that class. 

 
*A relevant person is the member, their spouse or civil partner, or a person with 
whom they live as spouse or civil partner.  

 
3.  Other registerable interests 

 
The Lewisham Member Code of Conduct requires members also to register the 
following interests:- 

 
(a) Membership or position of control or management in a body to which you 

were appointed or nominated by the Council 
(b) Any body exercising functions of a public nature or directed to charitable 

purposes, or whose principal purposes include the influence of public 
opinion or policy, including any political party 

(c) Any person from whom you have received a gift or hospitality with an 
estimated value of at least £25 

 
4. Non registerable interests 

 
Occasions may arise when a matter under consideration would or would be likely 
to affect the wellbeing of a member, their family, friend or close associate more 
than it would affect the wellbeing of those in the local area generally, but which is 
not required to be registered in the Register of Members’ Interests (for example a 
matter concerning the closure of a school at which a Member’s child attends).  

  
5.  Declaration and Impact of interest on members’ participation 

 
 (a)  Where a member has any registerable interest in a matter and they are 

present at a meeting at which that matter is to be discussed, they must 
declare the nature of the interest at the earliest opportunity and in any 
event before the matter is considered. The declaration will be recorded in 
the minutes of the meeting. If the matter is a disclosable pecuniary interest 
the member must take not part in consideration of the matter and withdraw 
from the room before it is considered. They must not seek improperly to 
influence the decision in any way. Failure to declare such an interest 
which has not already been entered in the Register of Members’ 
Interests, or participation where such an interest exists, is liable to 
prosecution and on conviction carries a fine of up to £5000  
 

 (b)  Where a member has a registerable interest which falls short of a 
disclosable pecuniary interest they must still declare the nature of the 
interest to the meeting at the earliest opportunity and in any event before 
the matter is considered, but they may stay in the room, participate in 

Page 10



consideration of the matter and vote on it unless paragraph (c) below 
applies. 

 
(c) Where a member has a registerable interest which falls short of a 

disclosable pecuniary interest, the member must consider whether a 
reasonable member of the public in possession of the facts would think 
that their interest is so significant that it would be likely to impair the 
member’s judgement of the public interest. If so, the member must 
withdraw and take no part in consideration of the matter nor seek to 
influence the outcome improperly. 

 
 (d)  If a non-registerable interest arises which affects the wellbeing of a 

member, their, family, friend or close associate more than it would affect 
those in the local area generally, then the provisions relating to the 
declarations of interest and withdrawal apply as if it were a registerable 
interest.   

 
(e) Decisions relating to declarations of interests are for the member’s 

personal judgement, though in cases of doubt they may wish to seek the 
advice of the Monitoring Officer. 

 
6. Sensitive information  

 
There are special provisions relating to sensitive interests. These are interests the 
disclosure of which would be likely to expose the member to risk of violence or 
intimidation where the Monitoring Officer has agreed that such interest need not 
be registered. Members with such an interest are referred to the Code and 
advised to seek advice from the Monitoring Officer in advance. 

 
7. Exempt categories 
 

There are exemptions to these provisions allowing members to participate in 
decisions notwithstanding interests that would otherwise prevent them doing so. 
These include:- 

 
(a) Housing – holding a tenancy or lease with the Council unless the matter 

relates to your particular tenancy or lease; (subject to arrears exception) 
(b) School meals, school transport and travelling expenses; if you are a parent 

or guardian of a child in full time education, or a school governor unless 
the matter relates particularly to the school your child attends or of which 
you are a governor;  

(c) Statutory sick pay; if you are in receipt 
(d) Allowances, payment or indemnity for members  
(e) Ceremonial honours for members 
(f) Setting Council Tax or precept (subject to arrears exception) 

 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

1. Purpose of the Report 

 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide Mayor and Cabinet with a response to the 

request from Healthier Communities Select Committee for assurances that the 
decision on the cut to the Health Visiting budget be made with regard both to the 
Mayor’s manifesto pledge relating to children and young people, and to Health 
Visitor to Child ratios. 

 
 

2. Recommendation 

 

2.1 Mayor and Cabinet are asked to note the referral and the response from officers 

and agree that it be submitted to the Healthier Communities Select Committee 

 

 

3. Policy Context 

 

3.1 The Health Visiting service contributes to the following key priorities of 

Lewisham’s Corporate Strategy 2018-2022: 

 Giving children and young people the best start in life 

 Delivering and defending health, social care and support 

 

3.2 Lewisham’s Children and Young People’s Strategic Partnership vision is: 

“Together with families, we will improve the lives and life chances of the children 

and young people in Lewisham”. This is achieved through a focus upon closing 

the gaps in outcomes achieved by our children and young people and agreement 

to ensure that children’s and families’ needs are prevented from escalating and 

are instead lowered. The ideal is for all children and young people to require only 

universal services and where further support is needed this should be identified 

and provided as early as possible. 

 

 

MAYOR & CABINET 

Report Title 

 

Response to the referral from Healthier Communities Select 
Committee relating to Public Health Grant Cuts: Health Visiting  

Key Decision No Item No.  

Ward All  

Contributors Director of Public Health 

Class Part 1 Date: June 5 2019 

Page 13

Agenda Item 3



4. Referral 

 

4.1 In the Spending Review and Autumn Statement 2015 the government announced 

an in-year cut to the ring-fenced Public Health grant, with further cuts for each 

subsequent year to 2019/20. In Lewisham the grant is £24,325,000 for 2018/19 

and the cut for 2019/20 will be £642,000. This will reduce the grant for 2019/20 to 

£23,683,000 and take the total cuts in the grant to date to £3,985,000. 

 

4.2 Proposals for the management of this cut to the public health grant were developed 

in 2018 and presented to Mayor and Cabinet for review and agreement on 12th 

December 2018. 

 
4.3 At its meeting on 3 December 2018, the Healthier Communities Select Committee 

received a report on the public consultation on proposed cuts to the public health 

grant, including cuts to health visiting services.  

 

4.4 Healthier Communities Select Committee took oral evidence from Council officers 

and members of the public and after questioning and discussion, resolved to refer 

its views to the Mayor and Cabinet in the following terms:  

 
The Healthier Communities Select Committee notes the Mayor’s 

manifesto pledge to continue to give the highest priority to our children 

and family services and to ensure all our young people – no matter 

what their background or challenges – achieve their potential and 

thrive. Having heard the responses to the public consultation on public 

health cuts, specifically health visiting cuts, the committee is concerned 

about the impact the proposed cuts would have on current and future 

life experiences of children and young people in Lewisham. The 

committee therefore asks Mayor & Cabinet to make its decision on the 

proposed cuts to health visiting services having regard to these points 

and the evidence produced on health visitor to children ratios in 

paragraphs 11.21 to 11.33 of the Mayor & Cabinet report on these cuts. 

 

 

5. Response 

 

5.1 As a result to this referral, Mayor and Cabinet deferred their decision for 

reconsideration of the impact on staffing resources for this service, with a further 

report coming back to Mayor and Cabinet on 13th February 2019. 

 

5.2 In this report, officers set out a revised proposal for implementation of the cut to 

the Health Visiting budget as follows: 

 

5.3 The proposed cut to the Health Visiting service budget of £196,306 against a 

budget of £6,096,224 gives a 19/20 budget for Health Visiting of £5,899,918. 

 
5.4 The pricing schedule submitted by Lewisham and Greenwich NHS Trust in their 

2016 tender gave a contract value of £6,053,976 in 19/20. This means a reduction 

in funding of £154,058 to the service; this would be implemented through a change 

Page 14



to the contract with Lewisham and Greenwich NHS Trust to bring into effect a 

revised contract value of £5,899,918. 

 
5.5 Following further consultation, Lewisham and Greenwich NHS Trust have 

confirmed that this cut can be taken without being put against the Health Visitor 

establishment, with the Trust accommodating the cut from overheads. 

 
5.6 The Trust also welcome an opportunity to contribute to the planned strategic review 

of Early Help during the coming year. 

 

5.7 With this reassurance, the cut to the Health Visiting budget was agreed at Mayor 

and Cabinet on 13th February 2019. 

 
5.8 This reduction, and any future year changes to the public health budgets once 

announced, will need to be the subject of further officer proposals to ensure 

expenditure on services matches the available grant.  

 

 

6. Legal Implications 

 

6.1 Legal implications are as set out in the report. 

 

 

7. Financial Implications 

 

7.1 Expenditure on public health in Lewisham is funded through the ring-fenced Public 

Health Grant. In 2019/20 this grant will reduce by £0.642m.  

 

7.2 The cut of £196,306 in this report is being taken from the Health Visiting budget 

line within the Council’s Public Health Budget. 

 
7.3 If the cut is taken, it would result in a reduction of £154,058 from the contract value 

with LGT for 19/20. LGT has confirmed that it will be realised with no impact on the 

current Health Visiting staffing establishment. 

 

7.4 The cut presented in this report is part of a number of cuts proposals that deliver 

the level of savings required for the Council to balance its budget as a result of the 

cut to the Public Health Grant in 19/20. 

 

 

8. Crime and Disorder Implications 

 

8.1 There are no crime and disorder implications arising from this report. 
 
 

9. Equalities Implications  

 

9.1 The proposal in this report has been considered for equalities impact and it is 

considered that there will be no impact in 19/20. 

 

Page 15



9.2 A full EAA will be undertaken as part of the Early Help Review, including any 

changes to the Health Visiting service in 20/21 as a key part of any Early Help offer 

 

 

10. Environmental Implications 

 

10.1 There are no environmental implications arising from this report. 
 

 

Page 16



 

  

  

HEALTHIER COMMUNITIES SELECT COMMITTEE  

Title  Mental Health Provider Alliance Progress Update  

Contributors  Kenneth Gregory, Associate Director, Joint 

Commissioning (Adult Mental Health)  

Item: 4 

Class  Part 1    25 June 2019 

  
1. Purpose of Report  

 

1.1. This report summarises the current progress of the Lewisham Mental Health 

Provider Alliance for Working Age Adults.  

 

2. Recommendation  

 

2.1. Members are asked to note the development progress of Lewisham’s Mental 

Health Provider Alliance.   

 

3. Local Context  

 

3.1. The Alliance Contracting model has been developing within Health and Social 

Care for the last several years. It enables the creation of a contracting structure 

in which multiple organisations such as commissioners and providers agree to 

work collaboratively to deliver a range of agreed services. Alliances are similar to 

consortiums or Joint ventures and are often led or initiated by commissioners. 

Commissioners can also be members of an Alliance and share in the collective 

risks.  

 

3.2. Based on the principles of collective ownership, decision making and 

accountability Alliance contracts are an approach that can be used to shape 

aspects of health and social care systems and services to be more outcome 

orientated whilst managing and sharing risks. 

 

3.3. Lewisham Health and Care Partnership are using the Alliance contracting 

approach to redefine and shape two vital borough based key pathways:  

 

 Care at Home Provider Alliance  

 Mental Health Provider Alliance  

 

3.4. Both Alliances will test integrated working across partners within their client group 

area but will also seek to align care and clinical pathways in order to create more 

opportunities for joined up physical and mental health care.   

 

4. Background: Mental Health Provider Alliance  

 

4.1. In February 2018 following a series of initial development discussions a proposal 

to establish an integrated provider delivery partnership was drafted on behalf of 

Adult Social care, South London and Maudsley Foundation Health Trust (SLaM), 

Page 17

Agenda Item 4



2  

  

Bromley Lewisham and Greenwich Mind, One Health Lewisham and Lewisham 

CCG. 

 

4.2.  The proposal outlined the need to work towards improving population based 

outcomes, through the adoption of a collaborative approach to Mental Health and 

Social care. Although Health and Social care staff already worked together within 

integrated teams, service users were expected to move between services to meet 

their needs and could be subject multiple assessments. Our proposed integrated 

arrangement seeks to reduce this type of duplication by providing access to the 

right intervention, at the right time in the right place.  

 

4.3. Following agreement of the proposal, the partners (SLaM, ASC, BLG MIND, OHL 

and Lewisham CCG) established a Mental Health Provider Alliance development 

Group. The development of the MH Provider Alliance was also factored into the 

Lewisham Health and Care Partners Partnership plans and became one of the 

two Alliance development transformation programme  

 

4.4. The Provider Alliance Development group in accepting the proposal sought to 

move at pace to make the MH Provider Alliance Operational and proposed in 

December 2018 that a ‘Shadow Alliance’ be created from the 1st April 2019. 

 

4.5. A subsequent business case was drafted by the Borough Service Director in 

SLaM and Associate Director for Joint Commissioning in order to outline the case 

for change, joint principles for development and intended benefits of this approach 

for service users, carers and the wider population. This business case has been 

agreed by SLaM and is currently being taken through the governance routes of 

the other Alliance Partners including London Borough of Lewisham. 

 

4.6. The Mental Health Provider Alliance development is a practical example of co-

designing system change as discussed at the Health & Wellbeing Board and 

BAME workshop on Health inequalities and promoting system change. Improving 

the health and social care outcomes for our population is one of the shared 

principles of the Alliance development. Ensuring that we reduce the gap in health 

inequalities for individuals with ‘protected characteristics’ is a key component of 

the programme and will require the development of an ongoing dialogue 

individuals and communities.    

 

 

5.  Current Progress  

 

5.1.  On the 1st April 2019, the Mental Health Alliance Leadership Group was 

established to lead the development of the ‘Shadow Mental Health Provider 

Alliance’. The term ‘Shadow Alliance’ means that Alliance Partners will work, 

think, create and deliver projects and programmes as a partnership but will still 

be accountable to their own organisations, and commissioners, during this stage 

of development.  

 

Page 18



3  

  

5.2.  The Alliance Leadership group have agreed the initial development to continue 

to progress the key objectives outlined in the Provider Alliance Business case 

which is as follows:  

 

I. Improve the Primary care and Secondary care interface. 

II. Improving physical health for Mental Health patients.  

III. Improved interface between acute, mental health, community and social 

care to reduce pressure on urgent care pathways generated by Mental 

Health referrals. 

IV. Rationalise estates in order to bring care closer to home (least 

restrictive environment).  

V. Integrate IT case management systems 

 

5.3.  The Provider Alliance has established a working group to address the first three 

bullet points through the re-design of local community mental health teams to 

make joint working between primary care and mental health services more 

effective by ensuring that secondary care, social care and the voluntary sector 

offer more consistent mental health support for those individuals that are being 

treated for the mental health needs by GPs.  

 

5.4.  The Provider Alliance Leaders Group have agreed that engagement is a key 

development priority for the Alliance. The first stage of this process has been to 

increase engagement and co-production by recruiting community 

representatives to the community transformation group which is redesigning 

local mental health  community pathways. The involving community members is 

one of the mechanisms that the Alliance will use to inform the improvement of 

our service offer and subsequent outcomes. The current community 

representatives are members of the CCGs Public Reference Group. In addition, 

invitations for service user representatives that could be involved in overarching 

MH Health Provider Alliance development programme have been sent to most of 

the locally commissioned services in both the statutory and voluntary sector. 

 

5.5.  The Provider Alliance intends to develop a co-produced engagement plan to 

ensure that initiatives are aimed at maximising engagement, involvement and 

feedback from individuals and communities with protected characteristics with 

differential improvement health outcomes compared to the rest of our overall 

population.   

 

5.6.  An IT project to develop a single case management system between primary 

care and community mental health has been established and will be tested in a 

GP practice before it is implemented across the borough. 

  

5.7.  The Mental Health Provider Alliances is bidding for national transformation 

funding to increase psychological interventions, care navigation, support work 

and peer support in Community Mental Health Teams. If successful the funding 

will strengthen our borough based Mental Health community offer and create a 

Page 19



4  

  

strong foundation for expanding the different types of staff (skill mix) within our 

Community Teams.  

 

5.8.  The Shadow MH Provider Alliance is the initial stage in our journey to become 

and formal Provider Alliance. Lewisham Health Care Partners have committed 

funding to appoint dedicated Programme Management posts to ensure that the 

transformation programme to achieve formal Provider Alliance status remains on 

track.  

 

6. Legal Implications 

 

6.1.   There are no specific legal implications  

 

7. Crime and Disorder Implications  

 

7.1.  There are no crime and disorder implications arising from this report.  

 

8. Equalities Implications  

 

8.1.  The Equality Act 2010 (the Act) introduced a new public sector equality duty (the 

equality duty or the duty). It covers the following nine protected characteristics: 

age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy 

and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, and sexual orientation. 

 

8.2.  In summary, the Council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to 

the need to:  

i. Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other 

conduct prohibited by the Act.  

ii. Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected 

characteristic and those who do not.  

iii. Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and 

those who do not.  

 

8.3.  The duty continues to be a “have regard duty”, and the weight to be attached to it 

is a matter for the Mayor, bearing in mind the issues of relevance and 

proportionality. It is not an absolute requirement to eliminate unlawful 

discrimination, advance equality of opportunity or foster good relations. 

 

8.4.  The Equality and Human Rights Commission has recently issued Technical 

Guidance on the Public Sector Equality Duty and statutory guidance entitled 

“Equality Act 2010 Services, Public Functions & Associations Statutory Code of 

Practice”. The Council must have regard to the statutory code in so far as it relates 

to the duty and attention is drawn to Chapter 11 which deals particularly with the 

equality duty. The Technical Guidance also covers what public authorities should 

do to meet the duty. This includes steps that are legally required, as well as 

recommended actions. The guidance does not have statutory force but 

nonetheless regard should be had to it, as failure to do so without compelling 

reason would be of evidential value. The statutory code and the technical guidance 

Page 20



5  

  

can be found at: http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/legal-and-

policy/equalityact/equality-act-codes-of-practice-and-technical-guidance/ 

 

8.5.  The Equality and Human Rights Commission (EHRC) has previously issued five 

guides for public authorities in England giving advice on the equality duty:  

 

i. The essential guide to the public sector equality duty  

ii. Meeting the equality duty in policy and decision-making  

iii. Engagement and the equality duty  

iv. Equality objectives and the equality duty  

v. Equality information and the equality duty 

 

8.6.  The essential guide provides an overview of the equality duty requirements 

including the general equality duty, the specific duties and who they apply to. It 

covers what public authorities should do to meet the duty, including steps that are 

legally required, as well as recommended actions. The other four documents 

provide more detailed guidance on key areas and advice on good practice. Further 

information and resources are available at: 

http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/advice-and-guidance/publicsector-equality-

duty/guidance-on-the-equality-duty/ 

 

9. Environmental Implications  

 

9.1. There are no environmental implications arising from this report.  

 

10. Environmental Implications  

 

10.1.  There are no specific financial implications arising from this report. 

 

If you would like further information on this report please contact Kenneth Gregory on 

kennethgregory@nhs.net  / 020 8314 9860.  
  

Page 21

http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/legal-and-policy/equalityact/equality-act-codes-of-practice-and-technical-guidance/
http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/legal-and-policy/equalityact/equality-act-codes-of-practice-and-technical-guidance/


This page is intentionally left blank



Mental Health Alliance Overview 

Kenneth Gregory ( Joint Commissioning

Lead – AMH. Lewisham CCG & Council) 

Donna Hayward Sussex (Service Director SLAM)

P
age 23



Mental Health Alliance Partners… 

 South London and the Maudsley NHS Foundation 

Trust

 One Health Lewisham

 London Borough of Lewisham

 Bromley Lewisham & Greenwich Mind

 Lewisham Clinical Commissioning Group

P
age 24



Our Approach 

Working with 
partners to 

deliver 
sustainable 
Improved 

Care

3

Governance of 
partner sovereign 

orgs

Regulators

The public

Select committee

Key Together… 

P
age 25



Key Objectives… 

 Improve the interface and patient experience between primary 

care and secondary care. 

 Improving physical health for Mental Health patients.

 To reduce health inequalities with a specific focus on individuals 

and communities with ‘Protected Characteristics’ 

 Improved interface between acute, mental health, community and 

social care to reduce pressure on urgent care pathways generated 

by Mental Health referrals.

 Improve access to local health and care services & early 

intervention. 

 Provide Co-ordinated care ensuring that provision is personalised, 

co-ordinated around individuals and delivered closer to home.P
age 26



Our Journey … 
 Partnership formed and objectives identified 

in 2018.

 Shadow Alliance established in April 2019.

Next Steps June 2019. 

 Community redesign in partnership with 

service users and carers.

Emphasis on Improving Access to Psychology 

therapy for BAME patients.

Developing an integrated approach in primary 

care. 

P
age 27



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 1 

Healthier Communities Select Committee 

Report Title 
 

Lewisham’s Early Help Approach: Update relating to Public 
Health in 2019/20  

Ward All 

Contributors 
 

Service Manager, CYP Joint Commissioning 

Class Part 1 
 

Date 25/06/19 

 
 

1 Purpose 
 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide Healthier Communities select committee with an 
update on the development of Lewisham’s Early Help Approach as it relates to the 
council’s public health functions.  
 

1.2 This report summarises the context in which our review of Early Help takes place and 
the drivers for this. It sets out the definition and scope of Early Help, together with the 
key programmes of activity being undertaken to improve and strengthen our approach in 
2019/20.   

 
 
2 Recommendations 
 
2.1 It is recommended that Healthier Communities Select Committee notes the content of 

the report. 
 
 
3 Policy Context 
 
National Policy Context 
 
3.1 The Early Help review and our developing approach takes places in a context of national 

uncertainty, with the withdrawal of the UK’s membership of the European Union still not 
finalised and changing dynamics in Parliament, a lack of confirmation on the 
continuation of the Government’s Troubled Families programme, and the lasting impact 
of a decade of austerity, with future funding to local authorities – such as the public 
health grant- uncertain. 
 

Local Policy Context 
 
3.2 An effective Early Help approach supports the Council’s Corporate Strategy 2018-2022, 

specifically the following priorities: 

 Giving children and young people the best start in life 

 Delivering and defending: health, social care and support 

 Building Safer Communities 
 
3.3 Early Help additionally supports the delivery of the following commitments in Lewisham 

Mayor’s manifesto: 

 Giving children and young people the best start in life: Protect our Sure Start Centres, 
help every family access their entitlement to free childcare, and continue to provide 
high quality early years education so that parents and children can get the support 
they need;  Work with parents and schools to reduce exclusions as they impact 

Page 29

Agenda Item 7



 

 2 

disproportionately on black pupils. We will review the strategies in place to narrow the 
achievement gaps that affect minority communities and poorer pupils; and Promote 
more high-quality mentoring by working with community and voluntary groups, and 
businesses to help our young people increase their resilience and open access up to 
employment opportunities. 

 

 Protecting our NHS and social care: Do our utmost to defend health and social care 
services that protect the most vulnerable communities in our borough; Promote 
healthy lifestyles by…..supporting ‘The Daily Mile’ initiative for all our school children 
and sign up more local businesses to reducing sugar in their meals; We need 
genuine parity of esteem for mental health services. Inspired by the Black Thrive 
model we will ensure that Black, Asian and minority ethnic groups gain appropriate 
access to mental health services and we will campaign for fair funding of mental 
health services for all; and Make our sexual health services easier to access, offering 
choice and quality throughout the borough. And we will work with schools and other 
providers to encourage accessible relationship advice and support for our young 
people. 

 

 Building Safer Communities: Develop a public health approach to youth violence and 
knife crime that looks at tackling the root causes. We will ensure all agencies – social 
services, schools, police and our NHS work together while involving parents and local 
communities; Seek funding from The Mayor of London’s £45 million ‘Young 
Londoners Fund’ to support youth services that turn children away from crime and 
provide early intervention; Further our work to combat sexual violence and domestic 
abuse; and Continue with efforts to combat child sexual exploitation and peer-on-peer 
abuse.  

 
3.4 Our Early Help approach is the delivery model by which we will deliver the vision as set 

out in our Children and Young People’s Strategic Partnership (CYPSP) Children and 
Young People’s Plan: Together with families we will improve the lives and life chances 
of the children and young people in Lewisham 

 
4 Drivers to the Early Help Review  
 
4.1 The drivers behind the current review of Lewisham’s Children and Young People’s 

Strategic Partnership Early Help strategy and approach are: 

 The existing Early Help Strategy expires this year, there has been lots of learning 
and change since its launch in 2017, including a better understanding of the 
nature and volume of demand for services below the threshold for statutory 
interventions  

 In view of the council’s wider budget challenges, 2018/19 savings proposals for 
the CYP directorate included £800,000 related to a number of commissioned 
services that are integral to our provision and offer of universal and targeted 
support for children, young people and their families. This proposal was not 
taken, pending the outcome of the review. 

 NHSE and a local, Councillor-led review of mental health and emotional 
wellbeing for children and young people  

 Lewisham’s developing Public Health Approach to Violence 

 Growing evidence around the importance and value of contextual safeguarding 
approaches  

 Ofsted inspections 2015 and 2018, our CSC improvement progamme and our re-
launched LSCB thresholds 

 

Page 30



 

 3 

4.2 The initial review is part of a longer term vision and plan to ensure that an early help 
approach is embedded across Lewisham.  
 

4.3 The review is closely aligned with the work arising from the NHSE and Councillor-led 
reviews of mental health and emotional wellbeing for children and young people, and the 
subsequent actions plans to strengthen Lewisham’s Early Help offer for mental health 
and emotional wellbeing outcomes, and to improve access and pathways to provision. 

 
5 What is “Early Help”? 
  
5.1 Early Help: 

 is an approach, not a team or a service 

 is all support available to children up to the level of a formal statutory intervention 
and therefore includes universal services accessible to all children – e.g. health 
visiting and GPs, as well as ‘early intervention’ and targeted or more intensive 
support for those identified as being need of extra support and/or with a clear 
need for a coordinated, multi-agency plan. 

 is for all children and young people, from 0-19 (25) 
 
5.2 The terms ‘early help’ and ‘early intervention’ are used in different ways in different local 

areas, and sometimes interchangeably, but there are differences between the two with 
early intervention being an aspect of early help. Early Intervention is support provided to 
children identified as being at risk of poor outcomes (e.g. poor mental health, poor 
academic attainment, or involvement in crime) to help them avoid these poor outcomes 
and/or targets specific, identified issues to prevent problems from occurring, or prevent 
problems from getting worse. 
 

5.3 Effective Early Help works to reduce the risk factors and increase the protective 
factors in a child or young person’s life. Risk factors can threaten a child’s development, 
limit their future social and economic opportunities, and increase the likelihood of poor 
outcomes in later life. Protective factors are the characteristics and conditions that can 
mitigate risk factors. 
 

5.4 An early help approach empowers children, young people and their families and 
encompasses communities and a range of services and partners working together. It is 
a system level programme of work. 
 

5.5 More work will be undertaken, as part of our development of Lewisham’s Early Help 
offer, to increase understanding of the language of early help and its cross cutting 
importance, value and impact across all outcomes.  
 

5.6 Lewisham’s emerging model for the delivery of our Early Help approach: 
 

Lewisham's Early Help approach sets out how we will work together - children, families, 
communities, and all services across our Partnership - to achieve the vision of our CYPP. The 
key purpose of the approach is to maximise positive outcomes for all our children and young 
people by preventing needs from arising, and where needs are identified, by intervening early 
and preventing those needs from escalating.  
 
Our aim for Early Help in Lewisham is for children and young people to be resilient, knowing 
when and where to go for help and support when faced with challenges and adversities as they 
arise. 

Page 31



 

 4 

We will achieve this by working together to build that resilience – not only of children and young 
people, but crucially of their families, and of the communities and neighbourhoods in which they 
live. 

Predict and Prevent (universal/primary 
prevention) 

CYP, their parents and carers, 
communities and the workforce are 
equipped to: 

 Identify risks to wellbeing and 
development and mitigate them 

 Identify protective factors in Lewisham 
and strengthen them 

Target & Respond (targeted/secondary 
prevention/early intervention) 

CYP, their parents and carers, communities and 
the workforce are equipped to: 

 Identify and respond to needs that aren’t 
being met 

 Target the children, young people and families 
who need us the most 

 Provide timely access and clearer pathways to 
evidence based support 

So that children, young people and their families receive: 

 The right support  

 At the right time  

 In the right place 

 
 

6 Early Help as it relates to the council’s public health functions 
 

6.1 The vision for a strong and effective Early Help approach is that children and young 
people in Lewisham are resilient, knowing when and where to go for help and support 
when faced with challenges and adversities as they arise. Parents, carers and families 
will be empowered to make the decisions that make the difference for their children. 
They will be part of active, participative and skilled communities that clearly understand 
the role they play in helping children to lead healthy and happy lives. 
 

6.2 More confident parents, more capable communities and more appropriate support from 
peers as well as from statutory agencies, will mean that a greater number of children 
and families will have their needs identified and met earlier and more effectively, with 
fewer children escalating to the point where statutorily services are required, and with a 
lasting positive impact for children and their families. 
 

6.3 In order to achieve this vision, the following services delivered as part of the council’s 
public health functions are key: 

 Health Visiting 

 School Health Service 

 Young People’s Health and Wellbeing Service 
 

6.4 Lewisham Health Visiting service delivers a universal home visiting service for all 
families from pregnancy up until the child is 5 years old. They also offer targeted 
interventions with additional support available to the most vulnerable families through 
the MECSH and FNP offer.  
 

6.5 In 2019/20, officers will work with Lewisham and Greenwich Trust to deliver and 
evaluate the pilot ‘Family Health Nurse Team’ for children aged 3.5-7 years old that 
have a Child In Need (CIN) status or are on a CP Plan. This team would provide a 
continuous, intensive home-visiting service to improve child health outcomes during this 
important transition period.   
 

Page 32



 

 5 

6.6 This will inform longer term planning for service delivery, in the context of the available 
Public Health Grant. 
 

6.7 The current contract for the Health Visiting Service ends in March 2020, with an option 
to extend for up to two years.  

 
6.7.1 Lewisham’s School Health Service is focused on ensuring the completion of school 

health entry checks and national child measurement programme, and school age 
vaccinations. It works closely with partners to ensure the health needs of school aged 
children are met. 
 

6.7.2 The Young People’s Health and Wellbeing Service works with young people aged 
10-19 (up to 25 with additional needs) offering support to any young person in Lewisham 
needing help or advice with emotional wellbeing, sexual health and/or substance 
misuse. The service provides outreach and short term support at tier 1 and tier 2 (up to 
tier 3 for substance misuse). Their offer is a universal one and Early Help referrals form 
a small percentage of their case load. The current contract is jointly funded by Public 
Health and the CCG and ends in May 2020 with an option to extend for up to two years 
on an annual basis. 
 

6.8 Lewisham and Greenwich Trust are members of Lewisham’s Early Help Board, 
responsible for the oversight and delivery of Lewisham’s Early Help approach. 
 

6.9 Officers have made contact with the Save Lewisham Hospital Campaign as part of our 
commitment to coproduction in the development of our Early Help approach. We want to 
ensure that the development of services and pathways to support are co-produced by 
children, families and the communities in which they live. These specific discussions will 
seek to address concerns previously raised by the Campaign regarding Health Visitor 
ratios and the role of Health Visitor Assistants. 

 
 
7 Financial Implications 

 
7.1 Expenditure on public health in Lewisham is funded through the ring-fenced Public 

Health Grant. In 2019/20 this grant reduced by £0.642m.  
 
7.1 The Health Visiting budget was subject to a proposed cut of £196,306 in 19/20 against a 

budget of £6,096,224, giving a 19/20 budget for Health Visiting of £5,899,918. This is 
£154,058 lower than the original contract value with LGT for 19/20. 
 

7.2 Following consultation, Lewisham and Greenwich NHS Trust confirmed that this cut 
could be taken without being put against the Health Visitor establishment, with the Trust 
accommodating the cut from overheads in 19/20. 

 
7.3 With this reassurance, the cut to the Health Visiting budget was agreed at Mayor and 

Cabinet on 13th February 2019. 

 
7.4 Any future year changes to the public health budgets once announced, will need to be the 

subject of further officer proposals to ensure expenditure on services matches the 

available grant.  

 
 
 
 

Page 33



 

 6 

8 Legal implications 
 
8.1 Matters raised in this report that resulted in a variation to the Health Visiting contract 

with Lewisham and Greenwich NHS Trust, decisions on those matters were made in 
accordance with the Council’s constitution and in accordance with that contact.  There 
are no other legal implications arising from this report. 
 

8.2 The Council has statutory duties in relation to improvement and protection of public 
health.  These a duty to take appropriate steps to improve and protect the health of 
people who live in their area  (Health and Social Care Act 2012); a duty to deliver 
‘mandated functions’ being the weighing and measuring of children, provision of health 
checks for eligible people, open access sexual health services, public health advisor 
services, and information and advice about local health issues (Local Authorities (Public 
Health Functions …) Regulations 2013); and requirements in relation to drug and 
alcohol and age 1-19 services (‘conditions of public health grant’). 
 

8.3 The Council has a public sector equality duty (the equality duty or the duty - The 
Equality Act 2010, or the Act).  It covers the following protected characteristics: age, 
disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and 
maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.  In summary, the Council 
must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to: 

 eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct 
prohibited by the Act. 

 advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not. 

 foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and 
those who do not. 

 
8.4 It is not an absolute requirement to eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, 

victimisation or other prohibited conduct, or to promote equality of opportunity or foster 
good relations between persons who share a protected characteristic and those who do 
not. It is a duty to have due regard to the need to achieve the goals listed above.  The 
weight to be attached to the duty will be dependent on the nature of the decision and the 
circumstances in which it is made. This is a matter for Mayor and Cabinet, bearing in 
mind the issues of relevance and proportionality. Mayor and Cabinet must understand 
the impact or likely impact of the decision on those with protected characteristics who 
are potentially affected by the decision. The extent of the duty will necessarily vary from 
case to case and due regard is such regard as is appropriate in all the circumstances. 
 

8.5 The Equality and Human Rights Commission (EHRC) has issued Technical Guidance 
on the Public Sector Equality Duty and statutory guidance. The Council must have 
regard to the statutory code in so far as it relates to the duty. The Technical Guidance 
also covers what public authorities should do to meet the duty. This includes steps that 
are legally required, as well as recommended actions. The guidance does not have 
statutory force but nonetheless regard should be had to it, as failure to do so without 
compelling reason would be of evidential value. The statutory code and the technical 
guidance can be found on the EHRC website. 
 

8.6 The EHRC has issued five guides for public authorities in England giving advice on the 
equality duty.  The ‘Essential’ guide provides an overview of the equality duty 
requirements including the general equality duty, the specific duties and who they apply 
to. It covers what public authorities should do to meet the duty including steps that are 
legally required, as well as recommended actions. The other four documents provide 
more detailed guidance on key areas and advice on good practice. 

Page 34



 

 7 

 
 

9 Equalities implications 
 

9.1 A full Equalities Act Assessment is planned as part of the Early Help Strategy. In 
addition, a full Equalities Analysis Assessment (EAA) was undertaken on the proposed 
changes to public health nursing services presented to Mayor & Cabinet on 28 
September 2016, which found that they did not discriminate or have an adverse impact 
on different protected characteristics within the local community. 
 

9.2 Further work was completed for Health Visiting in 2018, relating to the delivery of the cut 
to the Public Health Grant at that time. This is summarised below. 

 
9.3 Equalities data was provided from the service provider, Lewisham and Greenwich Trust, 

for the period April 2017 (Quarter 1 2017-18) to September 2018 (Quarter 2 2018-19), 
broken down by quarters as part of the development of proposals to deliver the cuts to 
the Public Health Grant in 19/20. The total number of recorded Health Visiting 
appointments in this time period was 172,892, giving an average quarterly caseload of 
24,699.  
 

9.4 The caseload is predominantly female. The gender breakdown of the child caseload 
aligns to population data with an approximate 50/50 split. Additionally there are a small 
percentage of cases where genders were not identified. Both the online consultation and 
the engagement sessions were accessed predominately by females: 72% online and 
91% at on-site visits. 
 

9.5 A quarter of the caseload identify as British, with a further 15% identified from another 
white background, 47% from BME origins and 12% not identified. This aligns with 
Lewisham population data. Participation in the consultation showed a much higher 
proportion of people identifying as “white”:  79% online and 73% at engagement 
sessions, this is not representative of Lewisham population data and we recognise that 
this is therefore an area where consultation methods need to be stronger.  
 

9.6 Any change or impact on the Health Visiting service is likely to be felt more by women 
than men, and by children as the main service users.  

 
 
10 Environmental Implications 

 
10.1 There are no environmental implications arising from this report. 
  
 
 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Healthier Communities Select Committee 

Title Select Committee work programme 

Contributor Scrutiny Manager Item 8 

Class Part 1 (open) 25 June 2019 

 
1. Purpose 

1.1 To advise members of the committee’s work programme for the 2019/20 

municipal year and to agree the agenda items for the next meeting. 

2. Summary 

2.1 The committee drew up a draft work programme at the beginning of the 

municipal year for submission to the Business Panel for consideration.  

2.2 The Business Panel will consider the proposed work programmes of each 

committee on 7 May 2019 to agree a co-ordinated overview and scrutiny work 

programme.  

2.3 The work programme can, however, be reviewed at each select committee 

meeting to take account of changing priorities. 

3. Recommendations 

3.1 The Committee is asked to: 

 consider the work programme attached at Appendix B – and discuss any 

issues arising from the programme 

 consider the items scheduled for the next meeting – and specify the 

information the committee requires to achieve its desired outcomes 

 review the forthcoming key decisions set out in Appendix C – and 

consider any items for further scrutiny 

4. The work programme 

4.1 The work programme for 2019/20 was agreed at the 4 April meeting. 

4.2 Members are asked to consider if any urgent issues have arisen that require 

scrutiny and if any items should be removed from the work programme.  

4.3 Any additional items should be considered against the prioritisation process 

before being added to the work programme (see flow chart below).  

4.4 The committee’s work programme needs to be achievable in terms of the 

meeting time available. If the committee agrees to add additional items, 

members will also need to consider which lower-priority items should be 

removed to create sufficient capacity. 

Page 37

Agenda Item 8



 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 38



 
 

4.5 Items within the committee’s work programme should be linked to the priorities 

of the Council’s Corporate Strategy.  

4.6 The Council’s Corporate Strategy for 2018-2022 was approved at full council 

in February 2019.  

4.7 The strategic priorities of the Corporate Strategy for 2018-2022 are: 

1. Open Lewisham - Lewisham is a welcoming place of safety for all, 
where we celebrate the diversity that strengthens us. 

 
2. Tackling the housing crisis - Everyone has a decent home that is 

secure and affordable. 
 
3. Giving children and young people the best start in life - Every child 

has access to an outstanding and inspiring education, and is given the 
support they need to keep them safe, well and able to achieve their full 
potential. 

 
4. Building an inclusive local economy - Everyone can access high-

quality job opportunities, with decent pay and security in our thriving 
and inclusive local economy. 

 
5. Delivering and defending: health, social care and support - 

Ensuring everyone receives the health, mental health, social care and 
support services they need. 

 
6. Making Lewisham greener - Everyone enjoys our green spaces, and 

benefits from a healthy environment as we work to protect and improve 
our local environment. 

 
7. Building safer communities - Every resident feels safe and secure 

living here as we work together towards a borough free from the fear of 
crime. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 39

https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/open-lewisham
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/tackling-the-housing-crisis
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/giving-children-and-young-people-the-best-start-in-life
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/building-an-inclusive-local-economy
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/delivering-and-defending-health-social-care-and-support
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/making-lewisham-greener
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/building-safer-communities


 
 
 

5. The next meeting 
 
5.1 The following items are scheduled for the next meeting on 3 September 2019. 
 
5.2 The committee is asked to specify the information and analysis it requires for each 

item, based on the outcomes it would like to achieve, so that officers are clear 
about what information they need to provide. 

 

Agenda item Review type Relevant Corporate Priority Priority 

Asset-based 
approach to adult 

social care 
Standard item 

Delivering and defending: 
health, social care and 

support 
High 

Budget cuts proposals Standard item 
Delivering and defending: 

health, social care and 
support 

High 

Primary care changes Standard item 
Delivering and defending: 

health, social care and 
support 

High 

Adult safeguarding 
annual report 

Performance 
monitoring/ 
information  

item 

Delivering and defending: 
health, social care and 

support 
High 

 
 
6. Referrals 
 
6.1 Below is a tracker of the referrals the committee has made in this municipal year: 
 

Referral title 
Date of 
referral 

Date 
considered 
by Mayor & 

Cabinet 

Response 
due at 

Mayor & 
Cabinet 

Response 
due at 

committee 

BAME mental health 
inequalities 

14 May 2019 5 June 2019  3 September 

Older adults day 
activities and 

services consultation 
14 May 2019 5 June 2019  3 September 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 40

https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/delivering-and-defending-health-social-care-and-support
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/delivering-and-defending-health-social-care-and-support
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/delivering-and-defending-health-social-care-and-support
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/delivering-and-defending-health-social-care-and-support
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/delivering-and-defending-health-social-care-and-support
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/delivering-and-defending-health-social-care-and-support
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/delivering-and-defending-health-social-care-and-support
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/delivering-and-defending-health-social-care-and-support
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/delivering-and-defending-health-social-care-and-support
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/delivering-and-defending-health-social-care-and-support
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/delivering-and-defending-health-social-care-and-support
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/delivering-and-defending-health-social-care-and-support
http://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=139&MId=5479&Ver=4
http://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=139&MId=5479&Ver=4
http://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=139&MId=5479&Ver=4
http://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=139&MId=5479&Ver=4
http://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=139&MId=5479&Ver=4


 
7. Information items 
 
7.1 Some potential work programme items might be low priority and may only require 

a briefing report for information to be produced for the committee to note and will 
not need to be considered at a formal committee meeting. 

 
7.2 Below is a tracker of the information items received by the committee: 
 

Item Date received 

King’s College NHS Foundation Trust  
CQC inspection report  

(and Lewisham CCG response) 
13 June 2019 

Lewisham and Greenwich NHS Trust  
quality account 2018-19 

17 June 2019 

 
 
8. Financial Implications 

There are no financial implications arising from this report.  
 

9. Legal Implications 

In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, all scrutiny select committees must 
devise and submit a work programme to the Business Panel at the start of each 
municipal year. 

 
10. Equalities Implications 

10.1 The Equality Act 2010 brought together all previous equality legislation in England, 
Scotland and Wales. The Act included a new public sector equality duty, replacing 
the separate duties relating to race, disability and gender equality. The duty came 
into force on 6 April 2011. It covers the following nine protected characteristics: 
age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy 
and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation. 

10.2 The Council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to: 

 eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other 
conduct prohibited by the Act 

 advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not. 

 foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and 
those who do not. 

 
10.3 There may be equalities implications arising from items on the work programme 

and all activities undertaken by the Select Committee will need to give due 
consideration to this. 

 
 
 
 

Page 41



 
11. Date of next meeting 

 
The date of the next meeting is Tuesday 3 September 2019. 
 
Background Documents 

 
Lewisham Council’s Constitution 

 
Centre for Public Scrutiny: the Good Scrutiny Guide 

 
 
 

 

Page 42



Healthier Communities Select Committee work programme 2019/20

Item Type Priority Delivery 04-Apr 14-May 25-Jun 03-Sep 08-Oct 02-Dec 15-Jan 18-Mar

Budget cuts proposals Standard item High Sep

Confirmation of Chair and Vice 

Chair
Constitutional req High Apr

Leisure centre contracts
Performance 

monitoring
High Apr

Work programme 2019-20 Constitutional req High Apr

BAME mental health access Standard item High May

South London and Maudsley NHS 

Foundation Trust quality account

Performance 

monitoring
High May

Older Adults Day Activities and Day 

Services
Standard item High May

Leisure centre contracts
Performance 

monitoring
High May

Mental Health Alliance Standard item High Jun

Lewisham and Greenwich NHS 

Trust (LGT) CQC inspection

Performance 

monitoring
High Jun

Primary care CQC inspections 

update

Performance 

monitoring
High Jun

Early help review Information item High Jun

Asset-based approach to adult 

social care 
Standard item High Sep

Primary Care Changes Standard item High Sep

Adult safeguarding annual report
Performance 

monitoring
High Sep

CCG system reform Standard item High Oct

Adult Learning Lewisham annual 

report

Performance 

monitoring
High Oct

Public health grant cuts Standard item High Dec

Lewisham hospital winter pressures
Performance 

monitoring
High Dec

Delivery of the Lewisham Health & 

Wellbeing priorities

Performance 

monitoring
High Jan

Lewisham People’s Parliament Standard item High Mar

Item completed

Item on-going 1) 5)

Item outstanding 2) 6)

Proposed timeframe 3) 7)

Item added 4) 8)

Meetings

Tue 25th June 2019

Tue 3rd Sept 2019

Tue 8th October 2019

Mon 2nd December 2019

Wed 15th January 2020

Wed 18th March 2020

Thu 4th April 2019

Tue 14th May 2019

P
age 43



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
  

 
 

 

  
FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS 

 

   
 

Forward Plan July 2019 - October 2019 
 
 
This Forward Plan sets out the key decisions the Council expects to take during the next four months.  
 
Anyone wishing to make representations on a decision should submit them in writing as soon as possible to the relevant contact officer (shown as number (7) in 
the key overleaf). Any representations made less than 3 days before the meeting should be sent toKevin Flaherty 0208 3149327, the Local Democracy Officer, 
at the Council Offices or kevin.flaherty@lewisham.gov.uk. However the deadline will be 4pm on the working day prior to the meeting. 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A “key decision”* means an executive decision which is likely to: 
 
(a) result in the Council incurring expenditure which is, or the making of savings which are, significant having regard to the Council’s budget for the service or function to which the 

decision relates; 
 

(b) be significant in terms of its effects on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards. 

 
 

P
age 45



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

 

March 2019 
 

Procuring external consultancy 
support for managing a Travel 
and Transport Programme 
 

26/06/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Tom Brown, Executive 
Director for Community 
Services and Councillor 
Chris Best, Deputy Mayor 
and Cabinet member for 
Health and Adult Social 
Care 
 

 
  

 

April 2019 
 

Financial Results 2018/19 
 

26/06/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

David Austin, Head of 
Corporate Resources and 
Councillor Amanda De 
Ryk, Cabinet Member for 
Finance and Resources 
 

 
  

 

May 2019 
 

Besson Street Business Plan 
2019/20  Part 1 and 2 
 

26/06/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Housing 
 

 
  

 

March 2019 
 

Children and Young People's 
Plan 2019-22 
 

26/06/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Sara Williams, Executive 
Director, Children and 
Young People and 
Councillor Chris 
Barnham, Cabinet 
Member for School 
Performance and 
Children's Services 
 

 
  

 

May 2019 
 

Lewisham library update 
 

26/06/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Tom Brown, Executive 
Director for Community 
Services and Councillor 
Jonathan Slater, Cabinet 
Member for Community 
Sector 

 
  

 

P
age 46



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

 

February 2019 
 

Adoption Lewisham Park 
Conservation Area, 
accompanying Article 4 
direction, and appraisal 
document 
 

26/06/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Mayor Damien Egan, 
Mayor 
 

 
  

 

February 2019 
 

Provision of Services to Adults 
with Learning Disabilities - 
Contract Award 
 

26/06/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Tom Brown, Executive 
Director for Community 
Services and Councillor 
Chris Best, Deputy Mayor 
and Cabinet member for 
Health and Adult Social 
Care 
 

 
  

 

April 2019 
 

Financial Forecasts 2019/20 
 

26/06/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

David Austin, Head of 
Corporate Resources and 
Councillor Amanda De 
Ryk, Cabinet Member for 
Finance and Resources 
 

 
  

 

April 2019 
 

Medium Term Financial 
Strategy 
 

26/06/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

David Austin, Head of 
Corporate Resources and 
Councillor Amanda De 
Ryk, Cabinet Member for 
Finance and Resources 
 

 
  

 

May 2019 
 

Extension and Variation CYP 
Core Assets contract 
 

26/06/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Sara Williams, Executive 
Director, Children and 
Young People and 
Councillor Chris 
Barnham, Cabinet 
Member for School 
Performance and 
Children's Services 
 

 
  

 

P
age 47



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

May 2019 
 

Increase capacity of Young 
Persons Accommodation 
based pathway 
 

26/06/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Sara Williams, Executive 
Director, Children and 
Young People and 
Councillor Chris 
Barnham, Cabinet 
Member for School 
Performance and 
Children's Services 
 

 
  

 

May 2019 
 

Lewisham Homes Acquisitions 
Loan 3 
 

26/06/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Housing 
 

 
  

 

May 2019 
 

Evening and Night Time Offer - 
Lewisham's vision 
 

26/06/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Tom Brown, Executive 
Director for Community 
Services and Councillor 
Andre Bourne, Cabinet 
member for Culture, Jobs 
and Skills (job share) 
 

 
  

 

May 2019 
 

Rushey Green Primary School 
Instrument of Government 
 

26/06/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Sara Williams, Executive 
Director, Children and 
Young People and 
Councillor Chris 
Barnham, Cabinet 
Member for School 
Performance and 
Children's Services 
 

 
  

 

June 2019 
 

Contract Award Cleaner Air 
Village 
 

09/07/19 
Overview and 
Scrutiny Business 
Panel 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Brenda 
Dacres, Cabinet Member 

 
  

 

P
age 48



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

for Environment and 
Transport (job share) 
 

June 2019 
 

Lewisham Gateway - Further 
Longstop Extension 
 

09/07/19 
Overview and 
Scrutiny Business 
Panel 
 

David Austin, Head of 
Corporate Resources and 
Mayor Damien Egan, 
Mayor 
 

 
  

 

June 2019 
 

Update on development of 
Bakerloo Line Extension 
scheme 
 

10/07/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

David Austin, Head of 
Corporate Resources and 
Councillor Brenda 
Dacres, Cabinet Member 
for Environment and 
Transport (job share) 
 

 
  

 

April 2019 
 

Revised List of Locally Listed 
Buildings 
 

10/07/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Mayor Damien Egan, 
Mayor 
 

 
  

 

March 2019 
 

Fleet Vehicle Replacement 
Programme 
 

10/07/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Brenda 
Dacres, Cabinet Member 
for Environment and 
Transport (job share) 
 

 
  

 

April 2019 
 

Future options for the Parks 
Service 
 

10/07/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Sophie 
McGeevor, Cabinet 
Member for Environment 
and Transport (job share) 

 
  

 

P
age 49



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

 

April 2019 
 

Permission to Tender Tier 2/3 
Drug Services/Shared Care 
 

10/07/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Tom Brown, Executive 
Director for Community 
Services and Councillor 
Joani Reid, Cabinet 
Member for Safer 
Communities 
 

 
  

 

May 2019 
 

New Cross Area Framework + 
Station Opportunity Study  
Supplementary Planning 
Document 
 

10/07/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Mayor Damien Egan, 
Mayor 
 

 
  

 

May 2019 
 

Change of Age Range at Addey 
and Stanhope School 
 

10/07/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Sara Williams, Executive 
Director, Children and 
Young People and 
Councillor Chris 
Barnham, Cabinet 
Member for School 
Performance and 
Children's Services 
 

 
  

 

May 2019 
 

Approval for Single Tender 
action for Counter Fraud Hub 
 

10/07/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

David Austin, Head of 
Corporate Resources and 
Councillor Amanda De 
Ryk, Cabinet Member for 
Finance and Resources 
 

 
  

 

May 2019 
 

Performance Monitoring 
 

10/07/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

David Austin, Head of 
Corporate Resources and 
Councillor Kevin Bonavia, 
Cabinet Member for 
Democracy, Refugees & 
Accountability 
 

 
  

 

P
age 50



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

May 2019 
 

Low Emission Vehicle 
Charging Strategy 
 

10/07/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Brenda 
Dacres, Cabinet Member 
for Environment and 
Transport (job share) 
 

 
  

 

June 2019 
 

Permission to Tender Sexual 
Health Promotion 
 

10/07/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Tom Brown, Executive 
Director for Community 
Services and Councillor 
Chris Best, Deputy Mayor 
and Cabinet member for 
Health and Adult Social 
Care 
 

 
  

 

June 2019 
 

Disposal of Downham 
Business Enterprise Centre 
 

10/07/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

David Austin, Head of 
Corporate Resources and 
Mayor Damien Egan, 
Mayor 
 

 
  

 

June 2019 
 

Contract Award Out of Hours 
Switchboard 2019-2022 
 

10/07/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Kevin Bonavia, 
Cabinet Member for 
Democracy, Refugees & 
Accountability 
 

 
  

 

June 2019 
 

Permission to Procure Youth 
Services 
 

10/07/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Sara Williams, Executive 
Director, Children and 
Young People and 
Councillor Chris 
Barnham, Cabinet 
Member for School 
Performance and 
Children's Services 

 
  

 

P
age 51



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

 

June 2019 
 

Adopting a Residents Charter 
for Lewisham 
 

10/07/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Housing 
 

 
  

 

June 2019 
 

Contract Award Refugee 
Resettlement Service 
 

23/07/19 
Overview and 
Scrutiny Business 
Panel 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Kevin Bonavia, 
Cabinet Member for 
Democracy, Refugees & 
Accountability 
 

 
  

 

February 2019 
 

Children and Young People's 
Plan 2019-22 
 

24/07/19 
Council 
 

Sara Williams, Executive 
Director, Children and 
Young People and 
Councillor Chris 
Barnham, Cabinet 
Member for School 
Performance and 
Children's Services 
 

 
  

 

November 2018 
 

Neighbourhood CIL Strategy 
 

24/07/19 
Council 
 

Janet Senior, Executive 
Director for Resources & 
Regeneration and Mayor 
Damien Egan, Mayor 
 

 
  

 

May 2019 
 

Statement of Accounts 
 

24/07/19 
Council 
 

David Austin, Head of 
Corporate Resources and 
Councillor Amanda De 
Ryk, Cabinet Member for 
Finance and Resources 
 

 
  

 

P
age 52



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

June 2019 
 

Appointment of Chief 
Executive 
 

24/07/19 
Council 
 

Adam Bowles, Head of 
OD & HR and Councillor 
Jacq Paschoud, Chair of 
Council 
 

 
  

 

April 2019 
 

Award of Contract Tier 4 
Substance Misuse Framework 
 

18/09/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Tom Brown, Executive 
Director for Community 
Services and Councillor 
Joani Reid, Cabinet 
Member for Safer 
Communities 
 

 
  

 

April 2019 
 

Anti-Idling Enfocement 
 

18/09/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Tom Brown, Executive 
Director for Community 
Services and Councillor 
Brenda Dacres, Cabinet 
Member for Environment 
and Transport (job share) 
 

 
  

 

June 2019 
 

Disposal of Horton Kirby 
Centre 
 

10/10/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

David Austin, Head of 
Corporate Resources and 
Mayor Damien Egan, 
Mayor 
 

 
  

 

June 2019 
 

Disposal of Bryn Coedwig 
Outdoor Education Centre 
Alberllefeni Machynlleth 
 

10/10/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

David Austin, Head of 
Corporate Resources and 
Mayor Damien Egan, 
Mayor 
 

 
  

 

June 2019 
 

Disposal of Tyn y Berth Centre, 
Corris, Machynlleth 
 

10/10/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

David Austin, Head of 
Corporate Resources and 
Mayor Damien Egan, 
Mayor 
 

 
  

 

February 2019 
 

Insurance Renewal 
 

30/10/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 

David Austin, Head of 
Corporate Resources and 

 
  

 P
age 53



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

 Councillor Amanda De 
Ryk, Cabinet Member for 
Finance and Resources 
 

April 2019 
 

Contract Award Tier 2/3 Drug 
Services/Shared Care 
 

20/11/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Tom Brown, Executive 
Director for Community 
Services and Councillor 
Joani Reid, Cabinet 
Member for Safer 
Communities 
 

 
  

 

August 2018 
 

Lewisham Strategic Heat 
Network Business Case 
 

11/12/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Mayor Damien Egan, 
Mayor 
 

 
  

 

P
age 54



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

 

      

      

P
age 55



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the meeting held on 14 May 2019
	2 Declarations of interest
	3 Responses from Mayor and Cabinet
	4 Mental Health Alliance
	04 Mental Health Alliance presentation - 250619.docx

	7 Early help review
	8 Select Committee work programme
	Appendix B - Select committee work programme 2019-20
	Appendix C Key Decision Plan - 250619


